
 

 
 
To all Members of the County Council 
 
An ordinary meeting of the County Council will be held at 10.30 am on 
Friday, 27 May 2022 at County Hall, Chichester PO19 1RQ. 
 
Note: There will be a limited public gallery available to anyone wishing to 
attend and view the meeting in person. 
 
Admission will be by ticket only, bookable in advance by 
emailing: democratic.services@westsussex.gov.uk. 
 
The meeting will be available to watch live via the Internet at this 

address: 
 

http://www.westsussex.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 

Agenda 
  
1.   Apologies for Absence  

  
2.   Members' Interests  

 
 Members are asked to disclose any pecuniary or personal interests 

in matters appearing on the agenda. 
  

3.   Minutes (Pages 7 - 36) 
 

 The Council is asked to confirm the minutes of the annual meeting 
of the County Council held on 1 April 2022. 
  

4.   Appointments  
 

 To consider any proposed changes to appointments.  Any proposals 
will be circulated and changes will take effect from the end of the 
meeting. 
  

5.   Address by a Cabinet Member  
 

 At the discretion of the Chairman, to receive an address by a 
Cabinet Member on a matter of urgency and/or significant interest 
to the County Council and which relates to the powers and 
responsibilities of the County Council or which affects the Council. 
  

6.   Report of Urgent Action (Pages 37 - 40) 
 

 To note urgent action taken under regulation 11 of the Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 
  

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:democratic.services@westsussex.gov.uk
http://www.westsussex.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


7.   Question Time (Pages 41 - 46) 
 

 Questions to the Leader and Cabinet Members on matters 
contained within the Cabinet report, written questions and any 
other questions relevant to their portfolios. Members may also ask 
questions of the Leader on anything that is currently relevant to 
the County Council. The report covers relevant Council business or 
developments in respect of portfolios arising since the meeting of 
the Council on 1 April 2022. A supplementary report may be 
published. 
  

(2 hours is allocated for Question Time) 
  

 Lunch (In the event that the morning business is finished 
before lunch the afternoon business will be brought forward 
as appropriate.) 
  

8.   Notices of Motion  
  

 (a)   Motion on Water Neutrality  
 

  To debate the following motion, submitted by Cllr Burrett, 
notice of which was given on 9 May 2022. 
 
‘This Council notes that in September 2021, Natural England 
issued a Position Statement with regard to planning 
applications within the Sussex North Water Supply Zone, 
which required Local Planning Authorities to only permit 
planning applications which were able to demonstrate water 
neutrality in response to concerns about the effect of new 
developments on the water table in several protected sites in 
the Arun Valley. 
 
The Council also notes the serious delays this has caused for 
Local Planning Authorities and for developers seeking to 
build or convert premises within the county, meaning that 
proposals for thousands of new homes for West Sussex 
people, and for thousands of square metres of new business 
premises which would provide employment for West Sussex 
people, have had to be put on hold indefinitely due to the 
inability of the relevant Local Planning Authority to grant 
planning permission in the absence of the evidence to 
demonstrate that these developments will be able to ensure 
water neutrality. 
 
The Council recognises the significant efforts made by all 
parties to work together to try to negotiate and agree a 
resolution to this issue, but expresses serious concern about 
the length of time that this is taking and the lack of any 
definitive timescale within which the matter is likely to be 
resolved. The Council therefore calls upon the Leader to 
make further representations to the relevant Government 
departments and other stakeholders involved, urging them 
to seek a sustainable resolution to the problem as a matter 

Page 2



of extreme urgency. 
 
The Council also notes that, even when this issue has been 
resolved, concerns about water stress will remain, and that a 
sustainable solution to that problem needs to be found in 
order to mitigate the effects of water stress in the long term. 
The Council therefore asks the Leader to write to the 
Secretary of State for the Environment, Food and Rural 
Affairs and to the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, 
Housing and Communities, urging the Government to 
introduce legislation to require all new developments to 
conform to a minimum level of water efficiency in the 
future.’ 
  

 (b)   Motion on Pension Divestments  
 

  To debate the following motion, submitted by Cllr Baxter, 
notice of which was given on 15 March 2022. 

  
‘The March 2021 full Council called on the West Sussex 
Pensions Committee to focus on sustainable investment. 
However, global events during 2021 and instability caused 
by the 2022 Russian in invasion of Ukraine have highlighted 
the urgent need for stronger and more specific action. The 
UK hosted the UN Climate Change Conference (COP26), 
where the UK government sought to show global climate 
leadership. 
  

        Divesting pension funds from fossil fuels is a clear and 
meaningful action that can be taken at a local 
government level. 

        Renewable power is generating higher investment 
returns than fossil fuels.  

        Members on the Pensions Committee act as trustees 
of the fund on behalf of its fund scheme members. 
Trustees must consider the long-term interests of 
members who will potentially be affected more by 
climate change. 

        Investments in or linked to coal, oil and gas 
companies must be replaced with sustainable, 
renewable fuel investments as part of this council’s 
carbon reducing and climate strategy. 

  
This Council calls on the Pensions Committee, as trustees for 
the fund, to take the necessary steps to divest all of its 
investments from fossil fuel companies by a date to be 
determined by that Committee.’ 
  

 (c)   Motion on Smokefree Fund  
 

  To debate the following motion, submitted by Cllr Ali, notice 
of which was given on 15 March 2022. 
  
‘This Council notes that: 

Page 3



  
(1)        Preventable disease continues to have a massive 

impact on the public's health, the NHS and the 
economy. 
  

(2)        Tobacco is the biggest preventable cause of cancer and 
death in the United Kingdom. 

  
(3)        Decades of comprehensive policy action have meant 

that adult smoking prevalence in the United Kingdom 
in 2019 was at a record low at 14.1%, but this masks 
significant inequality. 

  
(4)        Differences in smoking rates make it one of the leading 

drivers of health inequalities, responsible for half the 
difference in life expectancy between the lowest and 
highest income groups in England. 

  
(5)        That through their public health duties, local authorities 

are responsible for improving the health of their 
populations and do this through initiatives such as 
stop smoking services and wider tobacco control 
activities. 

  
This Council believes that local government must be 
adequately resourced to fulfil their public health duties. 
  
This Council asks the Cabinet Member for Public Health and 
Wellbeing to support Cancer Research UK’s calls for a 
Smokefree Fund (a fixed annual charge on the tobacco 
industry, making them pay for the damage their products 
cause without having any influence on how the funds are 
spent) to fund local tobacco control work, and urges the 
United Kingdom government to consider implementing a 
Smokefree Fund as part of its efforts to tackle health 
disparities.’ 
  

 County Council concludes 
 

 Items not commenced by 4.15 p.m. will be deferred to the 
following meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Director of Law and Assurance 
18 May 2022 
 
 
 

Page 4



Webcasting 
 

Please note: this meeting is being filmed for live and subsequent 
broadcast via the County Council’s website on the internet. The images 
and sound recording may be used for training purposes by the Council. 
 
Generally the public gallery is not filmed. However, by entering the 
meeting room and using the public seating area you are consenting to 
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings 
for webcasting and/or training purposes. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

West Sussex County Council – Annual Meeting 

 
1 April 2022 

 

At the Annual Meeting of the County Council held at 10.30 am on Friday, 1 April 
2022, at County Hall, Chichester PO19 1RQ, the members present being: 

 
Cllr Bradbury (Chairman) 

 
Cllr Wickremaratchi (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr Albury 

Cllr Ali 
Cllr Atkins, RD 

Cllr Baldwin 
Cllr Baxter 
Cllr Bence 

Cllr Boram 
Cllr Britton 

Cllr Burgess 
Cllr Burrett 

Cllr Cherry 
Cllr Chowdhury 
Cllr Condie 

Cllr A Cooper 
Cllr B Cooper 

Cllr Cornell 
Cllr Crow 
Cllr J Dennis 

Cllr N Dennis 
Cllr Duncton 

Cllr Elkins 
Cllr Evans 
Cllr Gibson 

Cllr Greenway 
Cllr Hall 

Cllr Hillier 
Cllr Hunt 
Cllr Johnson 

Cllr Joy 
Cllr A Jupp 

Cllr N Jupp 
Cllr Kenyon 

Cllr Kerry-Bedell 
Cllr Lanzer 

Cllr Linehan 
Cllr Markwell 
Cllr Marshall 

Cllr McDonald 
Cllr McGregor 

Cllr Mercer 
Cllr Milne 

Cllr Mitchell 
Cllr Montyn 
Cllr Nagel 

Cllr Oakley 
Cllr O'Kelly 

Cllr Oppler 
Cllr Payne 
Cllr Pendleton 

Cllr Pudaloff 
Cllr Quinn 

Cllr Richardson 
Cllr Russell 
Cllr Sharp 

Cllr Smith 
Cllr Sparkes 

Cllr Turley 
Cllr Urquhart 
Cllr Waight 

Cllr Wall 
Cllr Walsh, KStJ, RD 

 
71    Chairman  

 

71.1 Cllr Wickremaratchi, the Vice-Chairman of the Council, took the 
chair for the election of Chairman of the County Council. 

 
72    Election of Chairman  

 

72.1     The Vice-Chairman stated that he had one nomination for the office 
of Chairman of the Council, that of Cllr Pete Bradbury. Cllr Bradbury 

was elected Chairman of the Council for the ensuing year. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 

 

 

  
72.2     Cllr Bradbury made the prescribed declaration of acceptance of 

office and took the chair. 

 
73    Election of Vice-Chairman  

 
73.1     The Chairman stated that he had one nomination for the office of 

Vice-Chairman of the Council, that of Cllr Sujan 

Wickremaratchi.  Cllr Wickremaratchi was elected Vice-Chairman of 
the Council for the ensuing year. 
  

73.2     Cllr Wickremaratchi made the prescribed declaration of acceptance 
of office. 

 
74    Support for Ukraine  

 
74.1     The Chairman referred to the on-going situation in Ukraine and 

thanked members for wearing blue and yellow as a mark of support 
for all those who were suffering the ravages of war. He expressed a 
hope for a speedy resolution to the conflict. 

 
75    Death of Former Member  

 
75.1     The Chairman reported the death of Mrs Dorothy Hatswell who had 

represented the Imberdown division from 1996 to 1997. 

  
75.2     The Council stood for a minute’s silence in memory of Mrs Hatswell. 

 
76    Butler Trust Award  

 

76.1     The Chairman reported that Paul Wood of the Youth Offending Team 
had received one of the 10 national awards made annually by the 

Butler Trust. The awards, presented by the Trust’s Royal Patron, 
Her Royal Highness the Princess Royal, are given to those working 
in prisons, probation and youth justice to reward the most 

outstanding examples of the dedication, skill, and creativity found 
throughout the criminal justice. Members expressed their 

congratulations to Paul on his achievement. 
 

77    Women's Cricket World Club Final  

 
77.1     The Chairman congratulated the England women’s cricket team on 

reaching their sixth World Cup Final. 
 

78    Attendance and Apologies for Absence  

 
Attendance 

  
78.1     The following members attended the meeting virtually and therefore 

did not take part in or vote on items requiring a decision. 

  
Cllr Elkins, Cllr Hall, Cllr Hillier, Cllr Markwell, Cllr Mitchell, 

Cllr Payne and Cllr Richardson (afternoon session). 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 

 

  
Apologies 

  

78.2     Apologies were received from Cllr Bennett, Cllr Charles, Cllr Dunn, 
Cllr Forbes, Cllr Lord, Cllr Oxlade and Cllr Patel. 

  
78.3     Apologies for the afternoon session were received from Cllr Britton, 

Cllr B Cooper and Cllr O’Kelly. Cllr Joy gave his apologies and left at 

3.00 pm. 
  

78.4     Cllr Evans was absent for the afternoon session. Cllr Oppler left at 
3.15 p.m. 

 

79    Members' Interests  
 

79.1     Members declared interests as set out at Appendix 1. 
 

80    Minutes  

 
80.1     It was agreed that the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of the 

County Council held on 28 February 2022 (pages 5 to 18) be 
approved as a correct record. 

 

81    Review of Proportionality  
 

81.1     The County Council noted its statutory duty to review the 
proportionality on its committees each year and following the recent 
formation of the Green and Independent Alliance Group. A paper on 

the application of the proportionality rules and how they were 
applied, together with a table showing the number of seats on 

committees, was set out on pages 19 and 20. 
  
81.2     Resolved – 

  
That the review of proportionality on committees be agreed. 

 
82    Notification of Appointment of Cabinet Members and Advisers to 

Cabinet Members  
 

82.1     The County Council was reminded that the Leader was required each 

year to give notice to the Council of his appointments to the Cabinet 
and allocation of Cabinet portfolios between the Cabinet Members, 

together with the appointment of Advisers to Cabinet Members. 
  
82.2     The Council noted that Cllr Marshall had given notice to the County 

Council of his appointments for the ensuing year, as set out on 
supplement pages 21 to 26. 

 
83    Appointments  

 

83.1     A schedule setting out the nominations for the re-appointment of 
the members of non-Executive committees, the chairmen, vice-

chairmen, panels and substitutes of those committees and the 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 

 

 

members of Scrutiny Committees was circulated. Members were 
reminded that appointments of the chairmen and vice-chairmen of 
Scrutiny Committees will be dealt with at the next round of 

committees in the usual way. 
  

83.2     The schedule was agreed as set out at Appendix 2. 
 

84    Address by a Cabinet Member  

 
84.1     Members received a joint address by the Leader and Cabinet 

Member for Children on Young People on the new statutory direction 
meaning Children’s Services will remain under the direct control of 
the County Council. 

  
84.2     Members received an address by the Cabinet Member for 

Community Support, Fire and Rescue on the County Council’s 
response to the refugee situation in Ukraine. 

  
84.3     The Cabinet Member placed on record his thanks to Crawley 

Borough Council and Gatwick Airport for their support in the work to 

assist refugees arriving via the airport. 
  

84.4     In response to a comment from Cllr Quinn that there is need for 
mobile phones for refugees to help them contact family and friends, 
the Cabinet Member agreed to talk to officers. 

  
84.5     In response to a suggestion from Cllr Sharp, the Cabinet Member 

agreed to look at the system operating in Wales and Scotland where 
the governments are acting as sponsors for Ukrainian refugees. 

 

85    West Sussex Transport Plan  
 

85.1     The Council considered the adoption of the West Sussex Transport 
Plan, in the light of a report by the Cabinet Member for Highways 
and Transport (pages 27 to 38). 

  
85.2     Resolved – 

  
That the West Sussex Transport Plan 2022-36 be adopted. 

 

86    Question Time  
 

86.1     Members asked questions of members of the Cabinet on matters 
relevant to their portfolios, as set out at Appendix 4. This included 
questions on matters contained within the Cabinet report (pages 39 

to 44), a supplementary report (supplement page 1) and answers to 
written questions pursuant to Standing Order 2.38 (set out at 

Appendix 3). 
 

87    Motion on Growth Deals  

 
87.1     The following motion was moved by Cllr Boram and seconded by 

Cllr Albury. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 

 

  
‘This Council acknowledges the success of the Growth Deals since 
they were first introduced in 2015. The partnerships formed with 

the district and borough councils, along with other external 
partners, have delivered a number of projects across the county 

that have benefitted not only the economic vitality but also the 
public realm offering across many local areas. It is also worthy of 
note that the current Growth Programme has attracted £141m of 

external funding, including levelling up and Local Enterprise 
Partnership funding. 

  
However, we now believe that in addition to the refresh of the 
individual deals that is underway, the Cabinet Member for Support 

Services and Economic Development should also consider a refresh 
of the fundamental components of the Growth Deal programme to 

take account of the following: 
  
(1)        The impact of the COVID pandemic on economic growth in the 

county, particularly those areas that have been hardest hit; 
  

(2)        New ways of working and the shift in work patterns that may 
result from a return to a new normality; and 

  

(3)        The new government policies including the Levelling Up 
Agenda including funding and the targeting of resources.’ 

  
87.2     It was noted that Chichester district should have been included in 

the list of deals being refreshed in the briefing note on factual 

background information. 
  

87.3     An amendment was moved by Cllr Sharp and seconded by 
Cllr Gibson. 

  

‘This Council acknowledges the success of the Growth Deals since 
they were first introduced in 2015. The partnerships formed with 

the district and borough councils, along with other external 
partners, have delivered a number of projects across the county 

that have benefitted not only the economic vitality but also the 
public realm offering across many local areas. It is also worthy of 
note that the current Growth Programme has attracted £141m of 

external funding, including levelling up and Local Enterprise 
Partnership funding. 

  
However, we now believe that in addition to the refresh of the 
individual deals that is underway, the Cabinet Member for Support 

Services and Economic Development should also consider a refresh 
of the fundamental components of the Growth Deal programme to 

take account of the following: 
 
(1)        The impact of the COVID pandemic on economic growth in the 

county, particularly those areas that have been hardest hit; 
  

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 

 

 

(2)        New ways of working and the shift in work patterns that may 
result from a return to a new normality; and 
  

(3)        The new government policies including the Levelling Up 
Agenda including funding and the targeting of resources; and 

  
(4)       The Government’s Environment Act, Decarbonisation 

priorities and Climate Change Committee advice in the 

wake of COP26.’ 
  

87.4     The amendment was lost. 
  

87.5     The motion was approved. 

 
88    Motion on Pension Divestments  

 
88.1     Due to lack of time the motion was deferred to be considered for 

inclusion in the agenda for the next meeting. 
 
 

 
 

 
Chairman 
 

The Council rose at 4.25 pm 
 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



 
 

Interests 

Members declared interests as set out below.  All the interests listed below were 
personal but not pecuniary or prejudicial unless indicated. 

Item Member Nature of Interest 

Item 9 – Address by a 
Cabinet Member 

Cllr Burrett Member of Crawley Borough Council 

Item 10 – West Sussex 
Transport Plan 

Cllr Atkins Member of Worthing Borough 
Council 

Item 10 – West Sussex 
Transport Plan 

Cllr Boram Member of Adur District Council 

Item 10 – West Sussex 
Transport Plan 

Cllr N Dennis Annual Rail Season ticket holder 
between Horsham and London 

Item 10 – West Sussex 
Transport Plan 

Cllr Elkins Member of Arun District Council 

Item 10 – West Sussex 
Transport Plan 

Cllr Gibson Member of Mid Sussex District 
Council 

Item 10 – West Sussex 
Transport Plan 

Cllr Kerry-
Bedell 

Founder of Bourne Community Bus 
Service (free to residents) 

Item 10 – West Sussex 
Transport Plan 

Cllr Pudaloff Guide dog user and Guide Dogs’ 
Campaigners ambassador 

Item 10 – West Sussex 
Transport Plan 

Cllr Sharp Member of Chichester District 
Council 

Item 10 – West Sussex 
Transport Plan 

Cllr Smith Member of Worthing Borough 
Council and child attends a special 
school 

Item 10 – West Sussex 
Transport Plan 

Cllr Waight Member of Worthing Borough 
Council 

Item 11 – Question Time Cllr Ali Member of Crawley Borough Council 

Item 11 – Question Time Cllr Boram Member of Adur District Council 

Item 11 – Question Time Cllr Burrett Member of Crawley Borough Council 

Item 11 – Question Time Cllr Elkins Member of Arun District Council 

Item 11 – Question Time Cllr Hillier Cabinet Member for Economic 

Growth and Net Zero, Mid Sussex 
District Council 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



 
 

Item Member Nature of Interest 

Item 11 – Question Time Cllr Sharp Member of Chichester District 

Council 

Item 11 – Question Time 

including Written Question 6 

Cllr Atkins Member of Worthing Borough 

Council 

Item 11 – Question Time 

(Government response to 
the Landscapes Review: 
National Parks and Areas of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty) 

Cllr Montyn Member of Chichester Harbour 

Conservancy 

Item 12(a) – Motion on 

Growth Deals 

Cllr Ali Member of Crawley Borough Council 

Item 12(a) – Motion on 

Growth Deals 

Cllr Atkins Member of Worthing Borough 

Council 

Item 12(a) – Motion on 

Growth Deals 

Cllr Boram Member of Adur District Council 

Item 12(a) – Motion on 

Growth Deals 

Cllr Burrett Member of Crawley Borough Council 

Item 12(a) – Motion on 

Growth Deals 

Cllr Elkins Member of Arun District Council 

Item 12(a) – Motion on 

Growth Deals 

Cllr Hillier Cabinet Member for Economic 

Growth and Net Zero, Mid Sussex 
District Council 

Item 12(a) – Motion on 
Growth Deals 

Cllr Lanzer Member of Crawley Borough Council 

Item 12(a) – Motion on 
Growth Deals 

Cllr McDonald Member of Worthing Borough 
Council 

Item 12(a) – Motion on 
Growth Deals 

Cllr Sharp Member of Chichester District 
Council 

Item 12(a) – Motion on 
Growth Deals 

Cllr Sparkes Member of Worthing Borough 
Council 

Item 12(a) – Motion on 
Growth Deals 

Cllr Waight Member of Worthing Borough 
Council 

Item 12(b) – Motion on 
Pensions 

Cllr Burrett Deferred Member of West Sussex 
Local Government Pension Scheme 

Item 12(b) – Motion on 
Pensions 

Cllr Condie Member of Pensions Committee 

Page 14

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



 
 

Item Member Nature of Interest 

Item 12(b) – Motion on 

Pensions 

Cllr J Dennis Member of Pensions Committee 

Item 12(b) – Motion on 

Pensions 

Cllr Elkins Member of Pensions Committee 

Item 12(b) – Motion on 

Pensions 

Cllr Greenway Deferred Member of West Sussex 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

Item 12(b) – Motion on 

Pensions 

Cllr Hunt Member of Pensions Committee 

Item 12(b) – Motion on 

Pensions 

Cllr N Jupp Member of Pensions Committee 

Item 12(b) – Motion on 

Pensions 

Cllr Lanzer Deferred Member of West Sussex 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

Item 12(b) – Motion on 

Pensions 

Cllr Sharp Member of Chichester District 

Council 

Item 12(b) – Motion on 

Pensions 

Cllr Turley Member of Pensions Committee 

Item 12(b) – Motion on 

Pensions 

Cllr Urquhart Member of Pensions Committee 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Appointments to Committees – April 2022 
(excluding non-Council members) 

 
Changes shown in bold text 

Scrutiny Committees 

Note: The chairmen and vice-chairmen of scrutiny committees will be appointed at the first meeting of each committee. 

Name No. of members Members Substitutes 

Children and Young People’s Services 12 Cllr Baldwin 

Cllr Burgess 
Cllr Charles 
Cllr Cherry 

Cllr Cornell 
Cllr Duncton 

Cllr Hall 
Cllr Linehan 
Cllr McGregor 

Cllr Mercer 
Cllr Smith 

Cllr Sparkes 

Cllr Chowdhury 

Cllr Evans 
Cllr Lord 

Communities, Highways and 

Environment 

12 Cllr Albury 

Cllr Ali 
Cllr Baldwin 
Cllr Britton 

Cllr Greenway 
Cllr Kenyon 

Cllr Milne 
Cllr Oakley 
Cllr Oppler 

Cllr Oxlade 
Cllr Patel 

Cllr Quinn 

Cllr Burgess 

Cllr B Cooper 
Cllr O’Kelly 

Fire & Rescue Service 7 Cllr Bence 

Cllr Boram 

Cllr Albury 

Cllr Oppler 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 3
A

ppendix 2



Name No. of members Members Substitutes 

Cllr Charles 
Cllr Chowdhury 
Cllr Milne 

Cllr Pendleton 
Cllr Richardson 

Cllr Oxlade 

Health and Adult Social Care 12 Cllr Ali 
Cllr Atkins 

Cllr A Cooper 
Cllr B Cooper 
Cllr Dunn 

Cllr Forbes 
Cllr Nagel 

Cllr O’Kelly 
Cllr Patel 
Cllr Pudaloff 

Cllr Wall 
Cllr Walsh 

Cllr Burgess 
Cllr Cornell 

Cllr Joy 

Performance and Finance 15 Cllr Burrett 
Cllr Boram 

Cllr Britton 
Cllr B Cooper 

Cllr Condie 
Cllr Elkins 
Cllr Evans 

Cllr Gibson 
Cllr Kerry-Bedell 

Cllr Linehan 
Cllr Montyn 
Cllr Payne 

Cllr Sparkes 
Cllr Turley 

Cllr Wall 

Cllr Baxter 
Cllr McDonald 

Cllr Walsh 

 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 3
A

ppendix 2



Non-executive committees 

Name No. of members Members Other members 

Governance Committee 9 Cllr Baxter 
Cllr Bradbury (Chairman) 

Cllr Burrett 
Cllr A Jupp 
Cllr Lord 

Cllr Marshall 
Cllr O’Kelly 

Cllr Waight 
Cllr Wickremaratchi (Vice-Chairman) 

Not applicable 

Planning and Rights of Way 
Committee 

13 Cllr Ali 
Cllr Atkins (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr Burrett (Chairman) 

Cllr Duncton 
Cllr Gibson 

Cllr Hall 
Cllr Joy 
Cllr McDonald 

Cllr Montyn 
Cllr Oakley 

Cllr Patel 
Cllr Quinn 
Cllr Sharp 

Substitutes: 

Cllr Boram 
Cllr Cherry 
Cllr Forbes 

Cllr Johnson 
Cllr Kenyon 

Cllr Markwell 
Cllr Turley 
Cllr Wickremaratchi 

Regulation, Audit and Accounts 7 Cllr Boram (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr N Dennis (Chairman) 

Cllr Dunn 
Cllr Greenway 

Cllr Montyn 
Cllr Turley 
Cllr Wall 

Not applicable 

Standards Committee 9 Cllr Bradbury (Chairman) 
Cllr Burrett 

Cllr Cherry 
Cllr Johnson 

Not applicable 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 3
A

ppendix 2



Name No. of members Members Other members 

Cllr Kenyon 
Cllr A Jupp 
Cllr Lord 

Cllr Sparkes 
Cllr Wickremaratchi (Vice-Chairman) 

Informal Panels and Groups 

Name No. of members Members Other members 

Corporate Parenting Panel 7 Cllr Burgess 

Cllr A Cooper 
Cllr N Jupp 

Cllr Linehan 
Cllr Lord 
Cllr Oxlade (Vice-Chairman) 

Cllr Russell (Chairman) 

Not applicable 

Foster Panel (North) 1 Cllr Linehan Not applicable 

Foster Panel (South East) 1 Cllr Chowdhury Not applicable 

Foster Panel (South West) 1 Cllr Oppler Not applicable 

Additional Foster Panel 1 Cllr Hall Not applicable 

Safeguarding Adults Member 
Reference Group 

3 Cllr Chowdhury 
Cllr A Jupp 
Cllr O’Kelly 

Not applicable 

Treasury Management Panel 5 Cllr Condie 
Cllr Dunn 

Cllr J Dennis 
Cllr Hunt (Chairman) 

Cllr Sparkes 

Not applicable 

 

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 3
A

ppendix 2



 

 

 

Written Questions: 1 April 2022 

1. Written question from Cllr Pudaloff for reply by Cabinet Member for Adults 
Services 

Question 

The Council’s Adult Social Care Strategy claimed the following co-design activities 
relating to service users and carers: 

(a) Focus group discussions: in-depth conversations with smaller groups of 
customers and carers, with more opportunity for personal stories to come 

through. 

(b) Six 1-1 interviews: more detailed dialogue with customers and carers who 
requested more personalised conversations. 

(c) Public survey: a survey for people who access care, their careers. 

The Labour Group concern refers to activities falling short of co-production to work 

with voices of lived experience. Co-production means people are involved in planning 
and designing services from the very beginning and is distinct from general 
participation work or partnership working between organisations. 

Does the Cabinet Member agree, what has been omitted from the Council’s co-design 

strategy are the diverse range of voices of service users/carers and disabled person 
led organisations to sit down with Council staff to co-design and implement solutions? 

Answer 

The focus group discussions and the interviews were with people with lived 

experience, both those who access services as well as family and friend carers. Many 
who responded to the survey also had lived experience and thus the co-design 

activities included a diverse range of voices. 

What they told us was directly reflected in the strategy priorities. The strategy was 
written using the words they used and the issues that they told us were important to 
them. This was much more than general participation work. It was genuine 

collaboration and co-design with people who use Council services, their carers, 
partners, Council staff and members of the public, which was used to build a strategy 

that reflects what they want from their care. 

We have had feedback from several different people and groups saying that the 
voices of people with lived experience came through very strongly in the strategy. 

The strategy sets out the priorities and ‘we will’ statements. These outline what we 

are trying to achieve, but not how to get there. As you rightly point out, we now need 
to sit down with people who access our services, together with carers, frontline staff 
and partners in order to co-produce the solutions that will help deliver on these 

commitments. This is what we are starting to do now, and the outcome of this work 
will help inform the development of the Council’s plan for 2023/24 onwards. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 3



 

 

 

2. Written question from Cllr Pudaloff for reply by Cabinet Member for Adults 
Services 

Question 

Does the Cabinet Member agree with me that working-age social care service users 

living in the community, who have recently undergone a financial assessment, DRE 
(disability related expenses) should only be disallowed in very rare instances when 
the expense was manifestly not related and or did not ameliorate the consequences of 

an individual’s disability? 

Furthermore, does she think it is acceptable to allow those service users with a long-
term disability to have their quality of life reduced significantly at the same time as 

saddling them with a long-term debt? 

Answer 

Disability related expenses (DRE) are considered on an individual basis and in line with 
the legislation. Where a customer’s disability benefit is being taken into account, as part 

of the financial assessment, allowance is made to pay for DRE to meet the costs of needs 

not being met otherwise. This is in line with the statutory guidance. 

The Council has a responsibility to ensure all customers making a financial contribution to 
the cost of their support are treated equitably and reasonably, in accordance with the 

legislation and guidance and irrespective of their age. The Council’s approach follows the 
legislation. We have agreed that relevant policies will be reviewed on an ongoing basis, 
with the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee being updated on this work in 

September. 

If any customers have any issues regarding their ability to contribute to the cost of their 
care the Council has advised that they contact the service so that their concerns can be 
discussed on an individual basis. This is, again, a fair and reasonable approach. 

3. Written question from Cllr Baxter for reply by Cabinet Member for 
Community Support, Fire and Rescue 

Question 

I welcome the news that refugees, including from Afghanistan and Ukraine, are being 
supported to settling into life in West Sussex. I am pleased that this Council is 
supporting them through the following schemes: The UK Resettlement Scheme 

(UKRS), The Afghan Assistance and Relocation Policy (ARAP) and The Afghan Citizens 
Resettlement Scheme (ACRS). 

As a community leader: 

(a) Is there anymore that the Council can do to help the local co-ordination of 

support for refugees, including voluntary support?  

(b) Is there anything more that the Council can do to identify more local 
accommodation for refugees? 

(c) Are arrangements in place to ensure that children get swift access to 

education? 

Page 22

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 3



 

 

 

Answer 

(a) The Resettlement Team are particularly keen to make best use of the skills and 
welcoming nature of those who wish to help support those families resettling in 
our area. Although we already work alongside a number of wonderful volunteer 

groups, we are always looking to recruit more support for our resettled 
families. We are especially interested in hearing from volunteers who: 

• Have experience/interest in teaching English to speakers of other languages 

• Have language skills in Arabic, Dari, Pashto, Uzbek or Ukrainian and would 
be interesting in befriending activities or supporting existing voluntary 

groups 
• Are able to offer some work experience or employment opportunities to 

resettled families 

• Could support families in accessing community-based activities 

The collection, storage and distribution of physical donations can be difficult to 
process as we are a small team with limited storage space, so we are not 

asking for any objects to be donated at this time. However, the voluntary 
groups we work with are often looking to obtain bicycles (adults and children), 
scooters and good quality second-hand IT equipment. If you have any of these 

items, we would be happy to put you in touch with a voluntary group who could 
distribute it appropriately. They will, of course, also accept financial donations. 

(b) We are always looking to take on more self-contained accommodation for 

permanently resettling the ARAP/ACRS cohort, as detailed in the most recent 
update letter from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities. 

We are very interested in hearing from private landlords who are willing to let 
their properties in line with the Local Housing Allowance rates, to ensure the 
rent is affordable for the resettled families. If anyone is interested in discussing 

further details of renting their property via this route, they should contact the 
Resettlement Team directly. For those who do not have self-contained 

accommodation but would be interested in offering a room in their house, 
details of the Homes for Ukraine scheme can be found on the Resettlement 

Page of the Council website. 

(c) The Resettlement Team works closely with the admissions team to ensure that 
all students resettled within West Sussex are placed in school as swiftly as 
possible. We work closely with schools to arrange visits for the students before 

they start to help familiarise the family with the new school setting and give 
reassurance to both the students and the school about how they will settle in. 

We aim to ensure that schools feel supported in supporting the students by 
engaging with the Ethnic Minority and Traveller Achievement Service and have 
set up teachers’ forums for primary and secondary schools supporting resettled 

students. In addition to this, we are working alongside International Rescue 
Committee, who are currently developing an array of resources aimed 

specifically at support schools to best support students from a refugee 
background. We also provide tailored briefs to schools, written by a cultural 
advisor – for example we are sharing a brief on the context and practicalities of 

the upcoming month of Ramadan, to help those schools supporting our 
resettled Syrian and Afghan students who may be observing Ramadan. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 3



 

 

 

4. Written question from Cllr Cherry for reply by Cabinet Member for 
Community Support, Fire and Rescue 

Question 

HSBC is closing its retail banking branches in Burgess Hill and East Grinstead, as part 

of a plan to close 69 Branches across the UK. This will be a heartfelt loss to both 
residential and business communities in both towns. 

So, my question falls into three parts: 

(a) What is the cumulative impact of this; how many bank branches in West 

Sussex have closed in the past three years? 

(b) Although branch closures are commercial decisions made by the banks, 
lobbying bank leaders can often make a difference and be persuasive in 
moderating the banks’ plans. So how many conversations has the Cabinet 

Member had with banks, MPs or other influencers about bank branch closures? 

(c) What further actions does the cabinet member plan to take on this matter? 

Answer 

As an Authority we have no commercial control over banks decisions to close 
branches, the local MP can be lobbied as can the bank directly. 

National Picture 

The location of bank branches is primarily a matter for the individual companies. The 
Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) regulates the financial services industry in the UK. 
Its role includes protecting consumers, keeping the industry stable, and promoting 

healthy competition between financial service providers. 

Since September 2020, the FCA has published guidance for firms on considering the 
of branch and ATM closures on their customers’ everyday banking needs and consider 

the availability and provision of alternatives. 

The guidance requires: “Firms should have carried out a robust analysis of the impact 
of a proposed closure or conversion on their customers, particularly in terms of lost 

access and potential harms to vulnerable consumers… They should also have analysed 
the services that the firm’s customers can access at alternative sites, and how those 
compare to the services currently used at the site proposed for closure, as well as an 

analysis of new alternative access arrangements that the firm could reasonably put in 
place.” 

The FCA’s data shows that most people currently have reasonable access to cash 

through a combination of bank, building society, or Post Office branches and ATMs. 

The FCA’s Access to Cash Coverage in the UK Q3 2021 estimates that for access to 
any bank, building society, Post Office branch, or any ATM (either free or pay-to-use): 

 
• 95.7% of the UK population are currently within 2km of a cash access point 
• 99.7% of the UK population are currently within 5km of a cash access point 

For free-to-use access points only: 

Page 24

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 3

https://www.fca.org.uk/publications/finalised-guidance/fg20-3-branch-and-atm-closures-or-conversions
https://www.fca.org.uk/data/access-cash-coverage-uk-2021-q3


 

 

 

• 95.5% of the UK population are currently within 2km of a cash access point 
• 99.7% of the UK population are currently within 5km of a cash access point 

These coverage estimates are unchanged from 2021 Q2. However, the types of 
available access points have changed between Q2 and Q3: 

• The number of brick-and-mortar branches of the larger banks and building 
societies providing personal current accounts (PCA) continued to fall, as 224 (4%) 
ceased to do this. Coverage by these branches decreased from 60.1% to 59.6% of 

the UK population at 2km and from 87.5% to 87.4% at 5km. 
• There was an increase in the availability of Post Office branches, which offset the 

reduction in branch coverage. 
• The number of free-to-use ATMs declined, but the impact on coverage appears 

negligible. 

In summer 2021, the Treasury consulted on establishing geographic requirements for 

the provision of cash withdrawal and deposit facilities, designating firms for meeting 
these requirements, and establishing further regulatory oversight of cash service 

provision. The outcome of this consultation is still awaited. 

Local Picture 

Across the county there has been a reduction in bank branches although we have no 
records as to the numbers involved, it is a commercial decision made by the banks 

and we as an Authority have not been involved in those decisions. The cost of 
providing bank branches in many areas of West Sussex are high and customer 
demand is diminishing. We have seen banks agree to provide ATM facilities for a 

period of two years post closure to enable residents to continue to access cash. 

In recent years we have seen the growth in online banking, as an authority we 
promote safe use of online services, build resident confidence and regularly raise 

awareness of online scams especially when it relates to banking. 

The banks offer mobile banking services in areas showing demand, they work with 
local communities to assist residents to build confidence in online and app services. 

Mobile banks utilise local assets, car parks, alongside libraries and fire stations to 
bring banking back to communities where geographic and access barriers exist. 

The latest initiative in communities is pop-up banks in community venues that 
support basic banking demand and promote alternative ways to access banking 

services including telephone banking where people feel more confident speaking to a 
person. 

The emergence of collaborative facilities in communities is also now supporting local 

residents and improving access, there is a growth in banking and post office facilities 
in convenience stores which are universal regardless of who you bank with. 

Having read the current article relating to HSBC in East Grinstead, Uckfield and 

Burgess Hill, I note that while it a further loss of local branches, that HSBC are 
offering a range of modern day cost effective methods of accessing bank services that 
reflects the consequences of the pandemic and gives residents the opportunity to 

choose the way they bank in the future. They also appear to be putting in measures 
to assist customers who will be impacted by the loss of branches. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 3

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/access-to-cash-consultation
https://www.sussexlive.co.uk/news/sussex-news/hsbc-bank-branch-closure-sussex-6805162


 

 

 

5. Written question from Cllr Kerry-Bedell for reply by Cabinet Member for 
Environment and Climate Change 

Question 

Given huge increases in energy costs due to wholesale gas price uplifts, the war in 

Ukraine, and increase in use of electric cars, does West Sussex County Council plan to 
expand the Halewick Lane, Sompting, battery storage plant facility and accelerate the 
integration of with local electricity supply or suitable local industrial estate facilities? 

Answer 

The recent volatility in gas prices has caused justified concern to the county’s 
residents and business owners. The County Council’s finances have been insulated 
from much of this price volatility so far due to the flexible procurement approach with 

LASER Energy Buying Group and the competitive prices secured for electricity 
generated from the County Council’s solar farms. 

Advice from LASER Energy Buying Group indicates that prices are likely to stay high 

for at least the next three years. As a result, the County Council’s energy projects 
that generate electricity and help to provide resilience to the local and national grid 
have never been more important. 

Through the County Council’s solar farms and solar PV systems on corporate buildings 

and schools, the County Council continues to invest in energy assets that will allow a 
greater proportion of electricity used locally to be generated from renewables. The 

battery storage project at Halewick Lane will primarily provide resilience to the 
electricity grid and additional stability to enable more renewable energy generators to 

be integrated into the County Council’s supply. Cabling work to connect the site to the 
electricity grid is underway and scheduled for completion in autumn 2022, by which 
point it is expected that a contractor will have ben procured to install the batteries. 

Once complete, it is expected that there will be an opportunity to expand the site with 
some additional power generation. 

The potential for additional solar and battery storage at other sites owned around the 

county is also being explored and some specialist consultancy advice (from industry 
experts Roadnight Taylor) has been brought in to ensure viable projects are identified 
and taken through feasibility and governance as quickly as possible. 

Also being supported is the integration of renewable energy in local industrial estates 

through the LECSea project which is currently focused on the Manor Royal business 
district, but the model could be applied to other areas in the future. The project will 

drive investment in renewable energy and smart, local management to deliver low-
cost energy to the business community there. 

6. Written question from Cllr Atkins for reply by Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Property 

Question 

The council tax increase sent out to the Worthing residents did not show the split 

from West Sussex County Council, only the total of £1,555.74. 

Page 26

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 3



 

 

 

Please could I have a breakdown of the split between West Sussex County Council 
services? 

Answer 

Although West Sussex County Council produces a tax leaflet this has, for some years, 

only been available online. However, a hard copy is available on request. Council Tax 
bills are sent out to residents by their district or borough council and these bills 
contain a web-link which will take you directly to the West Sussex leaflet - Your 

Council Tax Bill 2022/23. The leaflet (PDF, 458KB) contains a full breakdown of our 
Council tax spending for 2022/23 Our budget for 2022/23 is set out on page 3 of the 

leaflet, including a chart showing how we spend your money, as set out below. 

 

7. Written question from Cllr Cherry for reply by Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Property 

Question 

At the beginning of this year around 30 of 43 West Sussex Children and Family 
Centres closed. The Council withdrew its services from these sites permanently. Many 
of these sites were shared with other services offering family support, such as 

midwifery. 

Before the Council withdrawal from these sites, strong hopes were expressed that 
other community service suppliers would continue to operate from these locations. 

Compared with last year, how many of these other community service providers are 

still operating from the places which they once shared with a now closed Children and 
Family Centre? 

To put this question into context it would be helpful to know: 

(a) How many of the now-closed Children and Family Centres operated from a site 

shared with another community service provider, prior to this year? 

(b) How many of the now-closed Children and Family Centres operated from public 
libraries run by the Council? 

Page 27

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 3

https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/media/14022/council_tax_leaflet.pdf


 

 

 

Answer 

(a) 30 

(b) Three: Angmering Library, Findon Valley Library and East Grinstead Library. 

The County Council’s Property and Assets team has been working on the Early Help 
Asset plan since the consultation on the future of Early Help went live in March 2021. 

Extensive work was done in supporting organisations that were impacted by the 
closures. The Assets team registered all expressions of interest in the centres and 
were in discussion with interested parties throughout this time. Each local member 

has been kept up to date with the proposals regarding assets in their division. 

Once the formal decision to re-design the service and declare a number of the assets 
surplus to requirements was taken in July 2021, (decision CAB2(21/22) refers) the 

Asset team carried out an appraisal and due diligence on all the options for the 
properties affected by the decision. 

During the consultation period, Public Health identified that nine of the 30 centres due 

to close were in locations needed to continue to provide the Healthy Child 
Programme, commissioned from Sussex Community NHS Foundation Trust (SCFT). 
These nine centres were reserved for that purpose and negotiations have been 

underway since to secure the properties. 

Currently three of the nine centres are now in use by SCFT and the County Council 
continues to negotiate with SCFT to lease or agree shared use at a further six centres, 

subject to agreement of terms and in some cases, agreement of the Freeholders or 
other parties where premises are shared. 

In addition to these nine centres, one further centre is now occupied by the Midwives 

Service. 

Additionally, local hiring arrangements have been agreed at a number of the County 
Council’s Libraries offering space to community service providers who were previously 
operating from the now closed Children and Family Centres. 

Of the 12 Children and Family Centres retained following the decision to re-design the 
Early Help Service, all include space currently being used by other community service 
partners. 

8. Written question from Cllr Lord for reply by Cabinet Member for Highways 
and Transport 

Question 

Regarding grass verges in West Sussex, can the Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Transport confirm: 

(a) How many miles of verge are part of the highways grass cutting contract; 

(b) How many miles of verge are classified as Community Road Verges; 

(c) How many miles of verge are in the trial of removing arisings that is being 

carried out in conjunction with the South Downs National Park Authority; 

Page 28

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 3



 

 

 

(d) Whether the results of the pilot scheme to remove arisings will be available 
before the next five-year grass cutting contract is written and put out to 
tender; and 

(e) How will the Council make the right decision on the issue of removing arisings 

in the contract if the full results are not available by this time? 

Answer 

(a) There are approximately 12 million square metres of highway verge throughout 
the county, split between rural and urban classification. Currently, the urban 

grass is cut five times per year in the growing season and rural grass is cut 
three times (1st cut visibility splays only, 2nd cut visibility splays and one-metre 

sideways swathe and 3rd cut the whole verge). Arisings from cutting are 
currently left on site, due to the prohibitive costs of collection and disposal. 

(b) There are 20 participating Community Road Verge locations consisting of 54 

individual verges across the county, although they are not measured in miles. 
They range in size from small individual verges to large expanses of verge, and 
an estimation in terms of linear mileage would be less than two miles in total. 

(c) The South Downs National Park Authority (SDNPA) pilot includes both urban 

and rural sites in the Park and runs for a period of three years (ends March 
2024). There are 11 rural trial sites linked closely with existing Notable Road 

Verges and will involve a combination of less cutting and the removal of 
arisings. A baseline ecological survey has been completed by the SDNPA who 
will be monitoring the impact of the pilot on each site annually. The urban sites 

consist of all verges within the Midhurst Town area and involves collecting the 
arisings after each of the five cuts. There are approximately 30,000 sqm of 

grass included within the Midhurst area. 

(d) Officers are monitoring the volume of arisings after each cut, with the data 
feeding into future discussions around the service level provided. Similar pilots 

in other local authority areas have indicated that removing the arisings reduces 
the fertility of the soil and hence the grass grows less vigorously (measured by 
the volume of grass arising taken after each cut). This in turn has enabled both 

a reduction in the number of cuts required, and the opportunity for some 
wildflower specifies to flourish as soil fertility reduces. 

(e) The most significant barrier to a wholesale move to cut and collect throughout 

the county, is the disposal of arisings. Officers are working with colleagues in 
Waste Services to dispose of arisings associated with the current pilots, 
although this skip and compost-based method used would not be sustainable 

on a countywide basis. 

Officers are already in contact with partners around the use of biodigesters, and 
these discussions continue. The ideal solution would be to feed arisings into 

digesters and use the fuel generated (bioethanol) to power the grass cutting 
fleet. It is likely that a combination of capital and grant funding will be required 

to progress a project of this scale. 

The collective data captured for these pilots and ongoing discussions with 
partners will be used to inform options around what the future operating model 
could look like. Whilst pilot timings might not align exactly with contract 

Page 29

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 3



 

 

 

renewal dates, there is confidence that there will be enough information 
available at the time to understand the pros/cons of all options. 

9. Written question from Cllr Quinn for reply by Cabinet Member for Highways 
and Transport 

Question 

I hope the Cabinet Member agrees with me that ensuring the safety of our roads 

should be a priority. I previously highlighted a number of road signs around the 
County that were defective or obscured and understood that a programme to address 

these was to take place. On my recent travels around the County, I am still seeing 
defective road signs. 

The following were announced in August 2021: 

• Replacing all faded and damaged signs; 
• Replacing corroded signposts; 

• Replacing damaged bollards; 
• Replacing worn out coloured surfacing; 

• With the extra £6m pounds added to this year’s budget, 

Can the Cabinet Member update me on the programme of works that was carried out 
and plans to address those signs that remain defective including those damaged in 

the recent storms? 

Answer 

There are approximately 60,000 road signs across the county. 

The revenue budget for road sign maintenance in 2022/23 is £300,000. This provides 
the resource of a two-person-gang who will deliver approximately 1,500 jobs per 

annum. There may be scope to deliver more works than this, by providing short term 
additional resource, but it is dependent on the material costs within the financial year. 

For 2022/23, there is an additional budget of £45,000 that will be used solely on sign 
cleaning and localised vegetation cut back immediately around identified signs. Traffic 

Engineers have identified 30 routes to be programmed for the start of the new 
financial year. Members are encouraged to send through suggested sites for dirty and 

obscured signs for consideration and future programming to the members’ highways 
email address. 

Some of the additional revenue funding secured for vegetation clearance will also be 

used to cut back vegetation around safety signs. 

The list of bullet points referenced in the question above are associated with the 
Public Realm Project. This work stream has used capital funding to deliver road sign 
and road marking improvements on selected routes over the last two years. The sites 

have been a mixture of routes identified by the Road Safety Team, as well as key 
routes selected by each of the three Area Highway Teams. 

In 2020/21, expenditure was approx. £1.5m and 113km of the highway network was 

treated. 

Page 30

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 3



 

 

 

In 2021/22, the treatment of 120km of highway network has been completed and the 
forecast is £1.4m of expenditure. 

For 2022/23, there is a budget of approx. £1.1m and 30 roads are already identified 
which are currently with the County Council’s contractor for assessment and pricing. 

10. Written question from Cllr Cornell for reply by Cabinet Member for 
Learning and Skills 

Question 

I am aware that plans to increase our Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 
(SEND) capacity within mainstream schools are in place and underway with an 

important objective being to minimise our need for expensive out-of-county and/or 
independent placements. Can the Cabinet Member please tell me: 

(a) When he anticipates this authority will have adequate in-house provision to 
meet the needs of the vast majority of West Sussex students with an EHCP; 

(b) How he believes we found ourselves in a position of such under capacity and 
what assessment has been made of this to ensure we prevent the situation 
recurring; 

(c) What long term plans he has to increasing in-house provision for those students 

with complex needs; and 

(d) What assessment has been made of the impact this has had on our mainstream 
schools (in terms of capacity and workload) and special schools (in terms of 

space)? 

Answer 

(a) The needs of the vast majority of children with Education, Health and Care 
Plans (EHCPs) are already adequately provided for by in-house provision. 

(b) See answer to (a) above. In addition, we are currently progressing a 

programme of works to further increase County Council provision by expanding 
existing schools or exploring opportunities for new special schools. 

(c) There are plans for increasing capacity include the building of two new special 

schools to create 300 additional places and to utilise any suitable buildings to 
expand our current special schools, the majority of which have a ‘Good’ or 

‘Outstanding’ Ofsted judgement. We are also creating additional Specialist 
Support Centre places attached to mainstream schools for children with social 
communication needs who require a higher level of support. 

(d) West Sussex has a lower proportion of pupils with EHCPs in mainstream schools 

than nationally and a higher proportion in specialist placements, including 
independent and non-maintained special schools. This indicates that there has 

been very limited impact on our mainstream schools. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Question Time: 1 April 2022 

Members asked questions of members of the Cabinet. In instances where a Cabinet 
Member or the Leader undertook to take follow-up action, this is noted. 

All members of the Cabinet 

Allocation of funding locally, from Cllr Albury and Cllr Baxter. 

Leader 

The Leader answered questions on the following matters: 

Crawley Growth Programme, from Cllr Ali. 

Recover and Rise programme, from Cllr Kerry-Bedell and Cllr Hillier. 

Cabinet Member for Adults Services 

The Cabinet Member answered questions on the following matters: 

Informal, unpaid carers, from Cllr Johnson. 

In response to a query from Cllr Johnson about whether the Council uses 
establishments requiring improvement by the Care Quality Commission for respite 

care, the Cabinet Member said she would find out and respond to her. 

Domestic abuse, from Cllr A Cooper and Cllr Burgess. 

Impact of rising costs of social care, from Cllr Wall. 

Written question 2, from Cllr Pudaloff. 

Cabinet Member for Children and Young People 

The Cabinet Member answered questions on the Your Mind Matters campaign, from 
Cllr Greenway, Cllr Mercer and Cllr Walsh. 

In relation to the ‘Your Mind Matters’ website, Cllr Walsh asked the Cabinet Member, 

in liaison with the Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing and the NHS, to ensure 
that statistics on Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services are reported to the next 

meeting of the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee. 

In response to a request from Cllr Mercer, the Cabinet Member said she would see if a 
recent confidential briefing for members of the Children and Young People’s Services 

Scrutiny Committee on the mental health of young people could be made more widely 
available to members of other local authorities in the county. 

Cabinet Member for Learning and Skills 

The Cabinet Member answered questions on the Education and Skills Strategy, from 
Cllr Kenyon and Cllr Mercer. 

In relation to the recently published Green Paper on Special Educational Needs, the 
Cabinet Member agreed to provide a hard copy of the Planning School Places 
document to Cllr Mercer. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 4



 

 
Cabinet Member for Communities, Fire and Rescue 

The Cabinet Member answered questions on the following matters: 

Wellbeing Month at libraries, from Cllr Nagel and Cllr Wall. 

System performance at the joint fire control room, from Cllr Walsh. 

Cabinet Member for Environment and Climate Change 

The Cabinet Member answered questions on the following matters: 

National Park review and AONBs, from Cllr Montyn. 

Consultation on 2021 Environment Act Biodiversity Net Gain Regulations, from 

Cllr Oakley. 

Storm sewage overflows, from Cllr Kerry-Bedell. 

Recycling newsletter, from Cllr Quinn. 

Cabinet Member for Finance and Property 

The Cabinet Member answered questions on the following matters: 

Current position of Centenary House Durrington, from Cllr McDonald. 

Woodlands Meed build project and ground source heat pumps, from Cllr Cherry. 

In response to a question from Cllr Cherry about why ground source heat pumps had 
not been included as part of the design of the new Woodlands Meed school, the 

Cabinet Member said he would find out and respond. 

Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport 

The Cabinet Member answered questions on the following matters: 

Active Travel and issues with potholes and pavements, from Cllr Baxter. 

Road repair prioritisation to support Active Travel, from Cllr Albury, Cllr Condie and 

Cllr Quinn. 

#WestSussBus engagement, from Cllr N Dennis, Cllr Oakley and Cllr Sharp. 

In response to a request from Cllr Dennis for bus stops and timetable information to 
be updated and stops that are no longer in use to be removed, the Cabinet Member 
said she would raise the matter with bus operators and with officers. 

In response to a question from Cllr Oakley about whether bus companies consult the 
Council when they plan to remove bus stops, the Cabinet Member said she would find 
out and ensure that members are consulted in future. 

Cabinet Member for Public Health and Wellbeing 

The Cabinet Member answered questions on the following matters: 

Wellbeing Service, from Cllr Boram and Cllr Oakley. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 4



 

 
In relation to the 10th anniversary of the Wellbeing service, in response to a request 
from Cllr Boram, the Cabinet Member agreed to make representations to the NHS 
about the need for statistics on the number of preventable diseases they deal with. 

In response to a question from Cllr Oakley as to whether there is evidence that 

campaigns to reduce smoking are having an impact on sales, the Cabinet Member 
said he would see if he could get some statistics. 

End of free lateral flow tests, from Cllr Smith. 

In response to a question from Cllr Smith about the end of free lateral flow tests and 

their availability for special school staff and families, the Cabinet Member agreed to 
make representations to the Government. 

Vaccination programme, from Cllr McGregor. 

Cabinet Member for Support Services and Economic Development 

The Cabinet Member answered questions on the following matters: 

Kickstart job programme, from Cllr Burrett and Cllr Hillier. 

Oracle Fusion project for Council service support, from Cllr Atkins and Cllr Kerry-
Bedell. 

In response to a question from Cllr Kerry-Bedell about the Council’s new business 
management system, Oracle Fusion, and whether it would be capable of being 

integrated by a management digital dashboard, the Cabinet Member agreed to find 
out and respond. 

 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Report of Urgent Action: Regulation 19 

1 Under regulation 19 of the The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 the County 
Council is required to receive a report from the Leader on any decisions taken 

under regulation 11. These are key decisions which were not in the Forward Plan 
and which needed to be taken with less than five clear days’ notice. Such urgent 

decisions can only be taken with the agreement of the relevant Scrutiny 
Committee Chairman or, in his or her absence, the Chairman of the County 

Council. Key decisions taken with less than five clear days’ notice which are in the 
Forward Plan are reported via the Executive Decision Database. 

2 Such action is avoided wherever possible as it circumvents the normal mechanism 
for publication of decisions and ensuring that members have the opportunity to 

comment before decisions are taken. 

3 However, on occasion this is not possible and the County Council is asked to note 
the following decisions which have been taken by the appropriate decision-maker, 

in consultation with the relevant members. 

Award of contract for re-tendered project - Installation of Modular 
Teaching Block at Queen Elizabeth II Silver Jubilee Special School, 

Horsham 

4 The Special Education Needs Team within Education and Skills identified a need to 
provide additional accommodation at Queen Elizabeth II Silver Jubilee Special 
School (QE2) in Horsham to provide for the 105 pupils currently on roll. Over 

recent years additional pupils have been accommodated by the school but without 
the supporting investment in accommodation. Pupil numbers have increased from 

85 in 2017 to 105 in 2019. 

5 In July 2020 the Cabinet Member for Education and Skills approved the allocation 
of £1.4m to fund the provision of a three-class modular teaching block with 

ancillary accommodation to ensure the school can offer suitable facilities for the 
105 pupils currently on roll (decision ES2(20/21) refers). Due to an increase in 
construction costs through the procurement process it was determined that an 

increased budget would be required for the project. Therefore, a change request 
was submitted in August 2021 for £224,000, providing a total budget of £1.624m. 

Approval has now been given to award the contract for carrying out the works. 

6 The proposal was published in the Forward Plan on 9 March 2022. However, 
rather than wait for required 28 days’ notice, the decision had to be taken under 
the urgent action procedure to enable the project to start without additional delay 

or cost increase. Following a compliant procurement process in 2021, it was not 
possible, for reasons beyond the Council’s control, to award the contract to the 

successful bidder from that tender process (report OKD5(21/22) refers) due to 
materials and resources shortages caused by the Covid-19 pandemic. The delay 
caused to the programme as a result means that the decision to award the 

contract to Portakabin Limited was urgent as the modular buildings need to be 
constructed and installed at the school ready for the new academic year starting 

on 2 September 2022. 

7 The Assistant Director (Property and Assets), with agreement from the Director of 
Law and Assurance and the Chairman of the Children and Young People’s Services 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6

https://westsussex.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?id=975&LLL=0
https://westsussex.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1267


 

 
Scrutiny Committee, has therefore approved the award of contract for the 
installation of a three-classroom modular block at Queen Elizabeth II Silver Jubilee 
School, Horsham for the sum of £1,358,950 to Portakabin Limited. 

Opportunity for a Block Contract with Aster Grove, part of Archmore Care 

Services 

8 There are continuing pressures on the health and social care system related to the 
impact of the pandemic, restrictions on homes, capacity of provision where 

needed and challenges recruiting and retaining staff. In addition, there is 
continued demand for nursing dementia beds and this is not always available to 

purchase. These market pressures are also resulting in an increasing cost of 
residential placements. 

9 An opportunity arose to commission 11 dementia nursing beds on a block contract 
for two years at Aster Grove, in the Littlehampton area of West Sussex. The 

Director of Adults and Health, with agreement from the Director of Law and 
Assurance and the Chairman of the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny 

Committee, therefore approved the award of a block contract for 11 nursing beds 
at Aster Grove in Littlehampton, for two years, from April 2022. 

10 The reason for urgency was the immediate need for cost efficient dementia 

nursing beds to be sourced more quickly than wider current market availability 
will allow as well as to meet demand for people with complex nursing and 
dementia needs at a rate which presents value for money to the Council and an 

opportunity to make savings on the Adult Social Care budget. 

 Halewick Lane Battery Storage Project - contract variation to complete 
the grid connection 

11 In March 2019, the Cabinet Member for Environment approved the development 

of a 24MW battery storage installation on a former waste disposal site at Halewick 
Lane, Sompting. Subsequently, in July 2021, the Director of Environment and 

Public Protection awarded the cabling contract for shortest route to Green Frog 
Connect Ltd. 

12 The shortest route crossed land in private ownership and Green Frog Connect has 
been unable to secure the easements to lay cabling across this land on the County 

Council’s behalf as per the contract. At tender stage, Green Frog submitted a cost 
to lay the cables along the alternative longer route along the public highway and 

this variation has had to be secured owing to the global economic uncertainty 
making further costs increases likely if prices cannot be ‘locked-in’. 

13 The Assistant Director (Environment and Public Protection), with the agreement of 

the Director of Law and Assurance and the Chairman of the Communities, 
Highways and Environment Scrutiny Committee, has therefore approved the 
contract variation of the grid connection contract with its contracted grid 

connection provider for up to £1.5m to be allocated from the project contingency. 

14 The decision had to be taken as a matter of urgency as delay would have 
prejudiced the County Council’s interests. 

Page 38

Agenda Item 6

https://westsussex.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=612
https://westsussex.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1319


 

 
Award of Contract for Professional Service Support (Adults Services) 

15 To support the delivery of our Council Plan 2021-25 and the Adult Social Care 
Strategy 2022-25, the Adults and Health directorate has set out its strategic 
purpose and outlined how the directorate will deliver services. This has produced 

a directorate business plan with a significant programme of work to deliver in 
2022/23, which includes a need to respond to ongoing service pressures that have 

been exacerbated by the Covid-19 pandemic and emerging government 
legislation. 

16 The nature, scale and complexity of the programme means that fixed-term 

external capacity and skills are needed to work alongside in-house teams to 
deliver core elements of programme. A procurement exercise has been carried out 
via the North East Procurement Organisation Framework and a service provider 

has been identified. Under the proposal the Council will contract directly with 
Bloom Procurement Services Limited based on a commercial and technical 

response submitted by a service provider on the framework, in this case, Roretti 
Limited. 

17 The Director of Adults and Health, with agreement from the Director of Law and 
Assurance and the Chairman of the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny 

Committee, has approved the award of a contract for professional services 
support to Bloom Procurement Services Limited services from 3 May 2022 to 

30 April 2023, to be provided by the selected delivery partner Roretti Limited, 
with a total contract value of £1,948,935. 

18 The decision had to be taken as a matter of urgency as there is a need for the 

work to commence at pace in order to meet the programme deadlines. 

Paul Marshall 

Leader 

Contact Officer: Helen Kenny, Head of Democratic Services, 033 022 22532, 

helen.kenny@westsussex.gov.uk 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Cabinet Report:  Delivering Our Council Plan 2021-25 

This report sets out the key strategic decisions, policy and programme initiatives, 

consultations, government announcements and key events within each Cabinet 
portfolio area to deliver our strategic priorities. 

Adults Services - Amanda Jupp  

• A number of organisations which work closely with adult social care services 

have received laptops to support their work as part of the social value 
element of the County Council’s IT contract with XMA. XMA has provided 

1,000 laptops to the County Council to be used to benefit the local community. 
Organisations have been selected as part of a collaborative project across 
directorates, led by officers within adult social care, to identify suitable 

organisations to receive them. Those receiving laptops include Domestic 
Violence services (My Sister’s House); homelessness charities (Stone Pillow, 

Crawley Open House); care leavers service; digitally excluded youth groups 
(Electric Storm, Audio Active, Sid Youth and Hope); My Network and My 
Network Plus (Learning Disability Services); Citizen’s Advice; Carer’s Support 

West Sussex; Worthing Early Intervention in Psychosis Service and resettled 
refugee families. The Library Service, which has helped to identify and liaise 

with providers and officers within the Fire and Rescue Service, is distributing 
the laptops to the organisations identified. 

• To address the vacancy gap for qualified social workers and occupational 

therapists, an improved pay and reward scheme has been implemented, using 
the additional £2m allocated for this purpose in the County Council’s 2022/23 
agreed budget. This will help to improve the County Council’s appeal as an 

employer for this staff group. In addition, a project to recruit qualified social 
workers from overseas is also underway, with offers made to 11 overseas 

social workers so far, who are due to start arriving from mid-June. Candidates 
have been recruited from a range of countries (Canada, India, South Africa, 
Zimbabwe and the Caribbean) and will bring with them a wealth of experience 

in adult social work. They will take up posts across the county in community, 
hospital, learning disability and mental health teams. It is planned to extend 

the project to recruit a similar number of occupational therapists, in the second 
half of the year. 

Children and Young People (Lead Member for Children) – Jacquie Russell 

• The County Council is seeking views on a Children and Young People’s Plan 

for 2022 to 2025 which sets out key priorities the Council and partners will 
focus on to make life better for children and young people. Parents and carers, 
young people and a number of partner organisations have worked together to 

agree these priorities, and the feedback received during the 12-week 
consultation will contribute to further developing and shaping the final Plan. 

• A new Youth Cabinet has been elected to represent the voices of young 

people across all parts of West Sussex. An important part of Youth Cabinet’s 
role is engagement with the County Council’s Cabinet, to ensure it is aware of 
the wide range of issues that impact children and young people. The Youth 

Cabinet is creating a manifesto that sets out the campaign pledges for its time 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7

https://yourvoice.westsussex.gov.uk/cypp
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/news/new-youth-cabinet-elected-to-represent-the-voices-of-young-people-in-west-sussex/


 

 
in office and all county councillors will have an opportunity to learn about this 
at a launch event in June. 

Leader – Paul Marshall 

• West Sussex County Council, East Sussex County Council and Brighton & Hove 

City Council are collaborating on a new initiative for the visitor economy 
across Sussex, instigated in response to the impact of the pandemic on the 
sector. Collaborative working will seek to boost recovery and sustainable 

growth, through a focus on longer staying national and international visitors. A 
recent meeting with invited industry representatives from across Sussex 

endorsed the new approach and welcomed the opportunity to be involved as 
the work progresses. The meeting followed the good news that £100,000 of 
marketing support for Sussex tourism has been awarded from the Department 

for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport Visit England Recovery Fund. Experience 
West Sussex is working with Visit Brighton and other destinations to maximise 

the opportunities for the whole county. 

Learning and Skills – Nigel Jupp 

• Over 98% of pupils will be attending one of their three top preference primary 
schools this September following primary school offer day with all 8,842 

pupils who applied being offered a place. West Sussex schools offer great 
support to children starting in Reception and families can now begin to plan for 
this big and exciting next step in their child’s life. 

• The County Council will receive over £10m in each of the next two financial 

years to support the creation of new school places and improve existing 
provision for children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 

(SEND). The funding is allocated from the £2.6bn capital investment announced 
in the 2021 Spending Review which the Government is providing to address the 
growing demand for school places for children with SEND and will support the 

County Council in its aim of enabling more children to attend school locally. 

Community Support, Fire and Rescue – Duncan Crow 

• The Cabinet Member recently visited Bognor Regis Library to see the school 
holiday events programme in action. There were many families in the library, 

sharing a story-time and taking part in Easter themed crafts. The library was 
also hosting some one-to-one digital support sessions with volunteers, 

providing valuable assistance to residents looking to take the first steps to get 
online. The Cabinet Member heard from library staff about the wide range of 
support offered to residents returning to the library after the challenges of the 

pandemic, and about the meeting rooms and library garden which are well used 
by a range of community partners in their work with residents. This work 

demonstrates the extent of services offered by the library service to their local 
communities. 

Environment and Climate Change (and Deputy Leader) - Deborah Urquhart 

• The Electric Vehicle chargepoint project will result in hundreds of 

chargepoints being installed across the county. The first chargepoints have 
already been installed in East Grinstead, with two rapid chargepoints being 
replaced in Storrington and Billingshurst. 

Page 42

Agenda Item 7

https://www.experiencewestsussex.com/developing-the-sussex-visitor-economy/
https://www.experiencewestsussex.com/developing-the-sussex-visitor-economy/
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/news/primary-offer-day-nine-out-of-10-west-sussex-children-offered-first-preference-school/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/high-needs-provision-capital-allocations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/high-needs-provision-capital-allocations
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/travel-and-public-transport/travelwise-sustainable-transport/electric-vehicles/#west-sussex-chargepoint-network


 

 
• A scheme to recycle hard plastic waste at Shoreham, Worthing, Crawley, 

Burgess Hill and Chichester Recycling Centres is now in operation. An additional 
facility will be added at Horsham, Billingshurst and East Grinstead in the next 

few weeks. Typical hard plastic items include garden furniture, plant pots, 
guttering, children’s toys and hard plastic containers. Plastic bottles and other 

rigid food packaging items like pots, tubs and trays are already accepted in 
kerbside collections and should continue to be placed there. In March 2022 the 
five sites collected 50 tonnes of hard plastics with an expectation of 700 tonnes 

per annum. Some items are separated for re-use, the remainder are broken 
down to pellet form, to make new plastic components. 

• A key goal of the County Council’s Climate Change Strategy is to achieve 

carbon neutrality in the Council’s operations by 2030 and the single largest 
source of carbon emissions is heating buildings across the corporate estate 

(offices, libraries, depots and fire stations). A study has been completed which 
identifies technical options to reduce carbon emissions from the top 50 emitting 
sites. Utilising the £20m fund set aside for climate change delivery and bids for 

government funding, this will form the basis of a strategic programme of works 
to make these buildings significantly more carbon efficient and minimise their 

reliance on fossil fuels such as natural gas. Along with the Smarter Working 
initiative this programme will enable the County Council to create a more 
efficient working environment that will be resilient in the long term to the 

benefit of its employees, residents and the environment. 

Finance and Property – Jeremy Hunt 

• In line with the Our Council Plan (PDF, 7.9MB) priority to ‘make the best use of 
our resources’, work is ongoing to maximise the use of the Council’s assets 

by disposing of any that are identified as surplus to requirements. During the 
financial year ending 31 March 2022, the County Council disposed of 12 surplus 

assets (land and property), realising approx. £11.5m in capital receipts. For 
2022/23, £9m of capital receipts have been budgeted for from further disposals 
of surplus assets. The disposals and re-investment of receipts is clear evidence 

of the Council making the best use of its resources. 

Highways and Transport – Joy Dennis 

• The Cabinet Member is undertaking a countywide road safety review and 
has set up a cross-party Executive Task and Finish Group (TFG) to advise on 

this work. The TFG’s work will include reviewing the speed limit policy to make 
it easier to introduce a lower speed limit where appropriate, exploring other 

traffic management measures that could help reduce serious-injury accidents 
and considering other highway-related issues that may contribute to road 
traffic collisions. The TFG is expected to conclude the review of speed limit 

policy and report its findings to the Cabinet Member in the summer. 

• The County Council committed to enter into an Enhanced Partnership with local 
bus operators in 2022. The Council has recently been informed by the 

Department for Transport (DfT) that it has indicative funding of c. £17.4m for 
2022-25 to improve bus services based on the ambitions (totalling £90m+) 
submitted in its Bus Services Improvement Plan in October 2021. A Task and 

Finish Group of the Communities, Highways and Environment Scrutiny 
Committee has commented on the ambitions to be submitted to the DfT within 

the Enhanced Partnership Plan in the summer and the Cabinet Member has 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7

https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/leisure-recreation-and-community/west-sussex-climate-action/our-strategy-and-commitment/
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/media/15919/our_council_plan.pdf
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/news/countywide-road-safety-review-gets-underway/
https://westsussex.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?id=1383&LLL=0
https://westsussex.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=16954&PlanId=417&RPID=3855450


 

 
been meeting local bus operators to discuss their priorities. In addition, an 
open-ended engagement - #WestSussBus - finding out your views on the buses 
- has been launched that will provide views to be considered by the Enhanced 

Partnership in the future. 

• As a result of successful partnership working, including with Mid Sussex District 
Council and the Coast to Capital Local Enterprise Partnership, the A2300 

improvements scheme as now been officially opened. The Council’s media 
release on the opening attracted positive coverage for all the partners. 

• The County Council and SUSTRANS are working to improve the safety of 

pedestrians and horse riders at the A281 Downlinks Crossing, Rudgwick. In 
addition to works already installed at this location, which include new signs on 
the A281, wooden guard barriers on the Downslink access ramps and 

vegetation clearance, investigations are now underway for a Pegasus crossing. 
The on-road signalised crossing, with adjustment to the Downslink access 

ramps, would allow for much-enhanced safety for pedestrians, cyclists, 
wheelchair users and equestrians. 

Public Health and Wellbeing – Bob Lanzer 

• At its meeting on 28 April, the West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 

received a report (PDF, 67.6KB) and presentation (PDF, 838KB) from the 
Director of Public Health on Public Health Priorities 2022/23, focused on the 
Government’s recently published and emerging national public health policy 

documents, and the Chief Medical Officer for England’s key messages regarding 
current public health priorities including the impacts of the past two years of 

the COVID-19 pandemic. Early discussions enabled the Board to commence 
forward planning to tackle issues locally, to improve the health of the 
population and reduce health inequalities across West Sussex. 

• The West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board has responsibility for the 

assessment of the health and wellbeing needs of local residents to inform 
strategic decisions of the Board and its constituent organisations. The Joint 

Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), led by the Council’s Public Health and 
Social Research Unit, provides an evidence base of the health and wellbeing 
needs of the local population, encompassing a wide range of work including 

detailed needs assessments, analyses, evaluations of new programmes/ 
activities, local surveys, and more. This is regularly reviewed, with additional 

information added when available; work on the main update report ‘JSNA 
Summary 2021/22’ is underway, taking into account emerging data. 

Support Services and Economic Development – Steve Waight 

• The County Council’s digital infrastructure team has recently been working with 

the West Sussex Growers’ Association to determine how enhanced digital 
infrastructure can support the County’s horticultural sector to sustain 
and expand production as well as compete with other regions and recover from 

a lack of seasonal employees. This work, with the support of funding from the 
West Sussex Local Enterprise Partnership, is in line with Our Council Plan (PDF, 

7.9MB) priority of ‘A sustainable and prosperous economy’. 

• The County Council remains on track to fully commit the innovative £5.7m ‘top 
up’ fund to support West Sussex rural communities to access the Government’s 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7

https://yourvoice.westsussex.gov.uk/westsussbus
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/news/boost-for-homes-and-jobs-provision-as-a2300-improvements-declared-officially-open/
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/news/boost-for-homes-and-jobs-provision-as-a2300-improvements-declared-officially-open/
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/news/pegasus-crossing-identified-as-potential-option-for-improving-safety-at-a281-downs-link/
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/news/pegasus-crossing-identified-as-potential-option-for-improving-safety-at-a281-downs-link/
https://westsussex.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=185&MId=3159&Ver=4
https://westsussex.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s31363/Public%20Health%20Priorities%202022-23.pdf
https://westsussex.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s31622/Agenda%20Item%209%20-%20PH%20Priorities%202022-23%20presentation.pdf
https://jsna.westsussex.gov.uk/
https://jsna.westsussex.gov.uk/
https://wsga.co.uk/
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/media/15919/our_council_plan.pdf


 

 
national Gigabit Voucher Scheme. It is anticipated that with the support of the 
County Council the fund will help an additional 13,000 homes and businesses 
gain access to gigabit-capable broadband. 

• The County Council’s contract with Capita for support services will end on 

30 September 2022. Whilst the majority of the services will transfer in 
September, the Employment Support Service will return to the County 

Council in early June.  This service includes Payroll and Human Resources 
support for schools and the early return will ensure those services are well 

placed to support the return of the remaining out-sourced services at the end 
of September. 

Contact Officer: Helen Kenny, Head of Democratic Services, 033 022 22532, 

helen.kenny@westsussex.gov.uk  

Background papers 

None 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7

https://gigabitvoucher.culture.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1 - Interests
	Minutes - Appendix 1 - Appointments
	Minutes - Appendix 3 - Written Questions
	Minutes - Appendix 4 - Question Time

	6 Report of Urgent Action
	7 Question Time

